Barrett Will Brewer, David Brommer, Daryl Brown, Amy Butler, Lisa Clayton, Manda Coffman, Katherine Cisler, Paul Divison, Michele Derouen, Mohamad Erhasry Sarah Fanklin, Bob Garfrerick, Leah Gaham, Mark Greer, Clasisa Hib., Dan Hallock, Felecia Harris Richard Hudiburg Scottlnfanger, Keith Jones Lisa Kirch, Ian Loeppky Lamont Maddox, George Makowski John McGee Janet McMullen, Michelle Nelson, Inniel Stevens, Ogun, Alaina Patterson, Esley Peterson, Effrey Ray, Lee Renfroe, Craig Robertson, Daniel Stevens, Jessica Stall, and Alexander Takeuchi Vice President Thornel was alsoniatendance.

Members not in attendance (withoutproxy): Pat Roden, Richard Stato, mend Karen Townsend.

Approval of agenda: Ian Loeppky moved to amend heagenda to removeremarks by President Kitts. Doug Barrettseconded he motion. The motion passed unanimous Tyneamended agenda was approved by acclamation.

Approval of minutes: Lisa Kirch moved approve the minutes of the December, 32015 meeting. Le Renfroese conded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. Motion:

Remarks from Vice-President Thornell: As President (itts was taan NCAA meeting and unable to attend, m4dt (su Millio 2the 6 Cas 6 Cas 6 A Toe Fewrit [(T5Td Td [(t)7(o)]Tw 417796 Tw (k024 Tbe 4 Cas Tw 41.418 0 To open forum with President Kitts on Februayr2. This is an opportunity to open aconversation on any topic. Questions must be submitted in advance formation on how submit questions will be sent to the campus via email VP Thornel reported that he budget is based on ashrink rate of 56%

Faculty Affairs Committee: The committee's report, a compilation of comments received relative to the issues of office hours and communications, were sent to the Senate via email in advance of the meeting. (Stachment A.)

Faculty Attitude Survey Committee: Craig Robertson reported that the survey is being finalized. The committee's goal is to begin data collection by late February and have the report completed before the end of the semester.

Unfinished Business:

Office Hours/Communication: President Franklin reminded the Senate that Faculty Affairs was charged the having a workable draft on this issue by the February meeting. Richard Hudiburg moved that whatever draft presented does not increase the number of office hours as stated in Leah Graber onded the motion. The motion passed. George Makowski moved that we recommend that our committee excise all mention of a prescribed number of hours for responding to communication. Lesl Peterson seconded the motion. The motion passed.

Sick Leave: Doug Barrett moved that Faculty Affairs provide a proposed draft policy at the March meeting. George Makowski seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

New Business

Therewas nonewbusiness.

Adjournment: Richard Hudiburgnoved adjournmentscott Infangerseconded the motion. The motion passed Themeeting adjourned at:18 pm.

5HVSHFWIXOO\ VXEPLWWHG

Amy Butler Secretary FacultySenate

DSSURYHG)HEUXDU\

No/Minimal Changes Communication Enforcement Hrs Post/Enforce Hrs Length Hrs Form Hrs Language

Off Hrs/Comm Report from Sen Fac Affairs Page 2 Peer Institutions Office Hours Communication with Students

Office Hours and Student Communication Feedback

No Changes

The [...] Department is fine with the office hour policy as is.

I personally think this policy should be left alone. I teach an online and face-to-face course, and how to manage my office hours was clearly discussed with the chair.

Keep the language of the faculty handbook as is with perhaps one insertion as indicated below.

Rationale:

Students are able to and do communicate with faculty members in addition to posted office hours through electronic means. (This proposed change implies that faculty are not as available to students as they actually are.) Perhaps of the first sentence should be inserted in the Handbook.

Communication with Students

one of the suggestions we need to make with regard to any policy on communication with students we need to make it clear to the COAD that they need to communicate with their faculty. Whether they do it through their chairs or actually have a faculty meeting is up to them.
Suggested rewrite: Faculty are encouraged to respond to student messages: a) from the learning management system in no more than 72 hours; b) from email in no more than 48 hours; and c) from telephone during the office hour. Regarding any particular given situations, the example can be "Faculty should use the out-of-office message when they are not available (e.g., participating in conference)."
Suggested rewrite: Faculty-student communication outside the classroom is an important part of student learning. This communication can take the form of a face-to-face meeting, emails, text messages and phone calls.
Suggested rewrite:

- the 72-hour response time is arbitrary and unnecessary.
- lack of responsiveness can be measured with discretion by the appropriate supervisors and administrative chain of authority (ideally within the department first).

also, even if we state that there is a time frame, would an auto-reply or form reply meet the intent? is there required content too?

I would prefer not to see wording in a policy that could be interpreted as a charge to respond to all student e-mails. Some student e-mails are best met with no response. Forcing a response to meet some deadline can be seen as a trap (a good response may be hard to formulate). For example, I am not comfortable responding to [end-of-semester pleas for extra credit to raise grade]. To respond [...] with a "No" is easily seen as uncaring. To expound on the answer "No" is difficult do to in writing without pitfalls.

The policy should explicitly state that faculty are not expected to respond to students over the weekend.

I have discussed the Office Hours and Communication with Students policy changes [identifying information removed]. The consensus is that the issue of faculty response time to student communications should be handled at the department level and that a statement specifying a time frame (72 hours) for response should not be outlined in the Faculty Handbook. If a statement must be included in the Faculty Handbook we recommend 2-3 business days as opposed to 72 hours.

I would like to see some wording about the requirement for student email to professors being appropriately worded and presented as to indicate that the student is competent to communicate in a professional manner. I state in my syllabi that I will not respond to "texting."

In the last line of the document, make the following change to add the word business so that the line reads: typically respond in no more than 72 business hours.

I am satisfied with most of the document except the last paragraph (Communication) It will probably become more understandable when the document describes how to communicate with students in a more concrete way. The document can explain how to

the University is closed. If the University was closed over Christmas from December 17 – January 4, are we still expected to follow the policy? I think if the University is closed, our communication should be worded "should respond in a reasonable timeframe when University is closed."

Office Hours Posting and Enforcement

Suggested rewrite: Faculty will post their office hours at the beginning of each semester in their syllabus and on their door.

Suggested rewrite: After approval by the department chair and consultation with the dean at the beginning of each semester, faculty members will list their office hours on all syllabi at the beginning of each semester and post these hours on or near their office doors. The respective department chair and dean should will also

Length

Suggested rewrite: These office hours should be at the discretion of the faculty member with approval by the department chair in consultation with the dean, keeping the needs of the students availability in mind. Faculty who teach online full time can satisfy this requirement by identifying seven hours a week they will be available to communicate with students.

In general, we do not feel that the office hour requirement (7 hours) needs to be lowered, but off-campus appointments with students and area schools should be taken into consideration

I am partial to the 1 hour per course with a limit on 4 hours, but [there may be] problems with the wording "not to exceed."

Based on what I have seen in other schools' requirements, we might want to include comments about lab courses, overloads, or high enrollment sections. This is what one school states:

Faculty should hold wet PTd

apportioned relative to the type of course being taught. That is, two office hours for each course. I suggest that if a course is traditional, its two corresponding office hours must also be traditional in the sense that the instructor will be in their campus office during that time period. If the course is hybrid or blended one of the two office hours will be traditional and the remaining hour will be online. Online office hours should be conducted in an open chatroom within the learning management system. If the course is online the two office hours shall be conducted in an open chatroom during the week. Instructors need not have those two online office hours consecutively. During the summer terms or during a minisemester, two office hours should be required for each course taught by faculty.

Form

All please be reminded that under increased expectations to publish, faculty members need blocks of time in which to conduct or write up research projects. Many research projects require time to be "in the field" whether in the sciences, mathematics, arts, education, or business disciplines. Certainly, many need to write in blocks of time where they may focus on their work.

Language

Suggested rewrite: Faculty members are not required to will maintain have office hours on days-when they do not have that they teach classes on campus.

We definitely do not support removing the language in the existing policy that protects faculty from being asked to come in for office hours on days they do not have class on camt I Tm[(W)-tr i BTOTEMC BT/P ≮MCID 2 30(e)-3(I)-1(a)-4(ng)3(se1)]TJ6e d-1(t)27/P ≮M(i)-1(s)(5)2(i s)(t)

Rewritten Versions

Faculty-student interaction outside of the classroom is one of the most important relationships on a college campus. The purpose of clearly defined, publicly posted office hours is to facilitate this interaction through consultation, discussion, and advisement with individual students. In keeping with that goal, faculty members will be available for consulting and advising with students. As a part of their regular assignment, faculty will schedule a minimum of seven hours per week during the regular fall and spring semesters and three and one-half hours per week during the summer term. Faculty members are not required to will maintain-have office hours on days-when they do not have that they teach classes on campus. These hours will be scheduled at times that best accommodate student access. Faculty with reduced teaching loads may schedule a reduced number of office hours.

Firat Date:

The will required to will maintain be scheduled at times that best accommodate student access. Faculty with reduced teaching loads may schedule a reduced number of office hours.